





SITING, BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION, AND RELATED STRUCTURES:

The structure is located in a suburban type development and faces
west towards the bay. No surrounding buildings are equal in size or
workmanship.

SURROUNDING ENVIRONMENT:  Usban (3 Suburban [ Scattered Buildings (]
Open Space X0 Woodland [ Residential [XJ Agricultural (] Village [
Industriad Downtown Commerical [_] Highway Commercial (1 Other [

SIGNIFICANCE.

The Sherbourne Farmhouse is an excellent example of Tate 19th century
architecture. This house, built by Thomas Sherbourne of Philadelphia in
1374, 1s an elaborate Italjanate style structure. When purchased at the
turn of the century by Charles W. Beck, the house was raised one level and
new sections, including a tower were added. The home was known as the "White
House of ilew Jersey" during the Beck ownership, since it was a popular gath-
ering place for many famous and wealthy summer visitors. Political figures
and well known men of the time including baritone Reinald Werrenrath and

lational Geographic illustrator, Louis A. Fuertes were among ‘“the Farms"
many quests.

ORIGINAL Ust: Farmhouse PRESENT USE: Residential

PHYSICAL CONDITION:  Excellent [X] Good Fair [ Poor (]

REGISTER LLIGIBILITY: Yes [X] Possible [J No [ Part of District (]

THREATS TO SITE: Roads (] Development [ Zoning (] Deterioration (]
No Threat X1 Other [

COMMENTS:

REVFERLENCES:
Cleary, Fritz. "Historical Series.” Asbury Park Press. date unknown

"Historic Structures of the Borough of Beach Haven," a pamphlet. Published
by the Beach Haven Bicentennial Commission.

The Sandpaper, October 29, 1980.

"Walking tour of Victorian Houses South of Centre Street." Presented by the
Long Beach Island Historical Association.
RECORDED BY: M. May DATE: October 1980

ORGANIZATION:  Heritage Studies
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IC PRESERVATION SECTION, 109 WEST STATE ST

U

LW JLRSEY OFFICE OF CULTURAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES
PISTORIC PRESERVATION SECTION

INDIVIDUAL STRUCTURE SURVEY FORM HISTORIC SITES INVENTORY NO. 1503-30

HISTORIC NaME. Converse Cottage COMMON NAME:
LUCATION 304 Atlantic Avenue BLOCK/LOT 120/9
SUNICTPALITY Zeach Haven COUNTY: Ocean
TGS QUAD fonald Fitzgerald UTM REFERENCES:
NERIADDRESS. = A Zone/Northing/Easting
OWNERIADDRESS. oaa"g - Atlantic Ave. N [E
S2each Haven, N.J. 08008
DLSCRIPTION
Construction Date: €.1890 Source of Date:  style
Architect: 20ss. Wilsen Bros. & Co. Phila. Builder:
stvie: Jueen <nne Form/Plan Type: irregular

MNumber of Stones: 213
Fountauon: iow, cemented over
Extener Wall Fubne: asbestos siding

Fenestration® 3 bay

Roof/Chimneys:  combination gables with hip; conical on round turret, shaped interior
chimney
Additional Archutectural Description:

A larce enclosed porch is located on the east, north and south sides which echoes
the snape of the building. The porch contains elliptical fanlight windows. The double
door has side iignts and a gabled roof. The second floor has large recessed windows
with wooden surrounds located in the turret. The third floor has small dormers or
paired windows 1ff the gable ends. A molded cornice runs along the gable roof. The
round tcwer has a curved balcony (echoing its shape) and gabled windows with returns
and brackets. A triangular window is found on the south side in the peak of the roof.

PIHOTO Negative File No.  1503-30 Map (Indicate North)
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SITING. BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION, AND RELATED STRUCTURES:

The structure is located on a corner lot and is surrounded by modern
buildings to the east and north. To the west is a structure similar in
size and date. The structure to its south (#506 Atlantic) is a converse
plan of this building.

SUKRROUNDING ENVIRONMENT:  Urban [~ Suburban [ Scattered Buildings [

Open Space Woodland [ Residential X1 Agricuitural (3 Village (3
Industrial Downtown Commerical [} Highway Commercial (] Other []

SIGNIFICANCE:

ihe structure, known as Converse Cottage because it is a mirror image
of 506 Atlantic (and was owned by John H. Converse), is one of the most
elaborate homes on Long Beach Island. Although somewhat altered, the build-
ing still contains a richly decorated tower, various window types and turned
window surrounds. This house, along with 506 Atlantic, was probably designed
by Wilson Brothers and Company of Philadelphia since records of the company

show that the firm also designed Philadelphia homes for the original owners
of these two houses.

ORIGINAL USE: Residential PRESENT USE: Residential
PHYSICAL CONDITION:  Excellent [ Good X1 Fair (] Poor ]
REGISTER ELIGIBILITY:  Yes [XI Possible [] No [J Part of District [X]
THRLEATS TO SITE: Roads(] Development [ Zoning [] Deterioration (]

No Threat XJ Other (]
COMMENTS:

REFERENCLS:
"Historic Structures of the Borough of Beach Haven", a pamphlet published
by the Beach Haven Bicentennial Commission. 1976.

"dilson Brothers and Comapny Catalogue of Work Executed", printed by Lippin-
cott Co., Phila. 1885 '

“dalking tour of Victorian Houses South of Centre St., Beach Haven", presen-
ted by the Long Beach Island Historical Assocaition.

RECORDED BY: M. May DATE:  September 28, 1980
ORGANIZATION: Heritage Studies




SITING. BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION, AND RELATED STRUCTURES:

located on a corner lot, the structure is situated near the street with
little side or rear yard. The buildings to the east are modern motels / apart-

ments. 7o the north is a house (#504 Atlantic) which was built at the same
time.

SURROUNDING ENVIRONMENT:  Urban [ ™ Suburban [ Scattered Buildings [
Open Space Woodland [ Residential X Agricultural [J Village [
Industnal L Downtown Commerical [ Highway Commercial [] Other []

SIGNIFICANCE:

The structure was built for Dr. Edward H. Williams, one of the partners
of the Zaldwin Locomotive Works. This house was the second home built for
Or. Williams at Beach Haven, the first being Portia Cottage at 123 Coral St.
Or. Williams believed his new beach cottage was more appropriate for his use,
and after one year sold Portia Cottage. The building at 506 S. Atlantic is
one of the most impressive on the Island, containing a domed tower, various
window types and elaborately turned elements. Its neighbor #504 Atlantic is
similar, but its plan is opposite that of the Williams House. It is assumed
that Or. Williams employed the Wilson Brothers firm to design this structure
as he had for his Coral Street residence.

ORIGINAL USE:  Residential PRESENT USE: Residential

PIYSICAL CONDITION:  Excellent X0 Good ] Fair [J Poor (]

REGISTER ELIGIBILITY: Yes XI Possible [] No [ Part of District []

THREATS TO SITE: Roads[] Development (] Zoning (] Deterioration (]
No Threat X1 Other (]

COMMENTS:

REFFRENCES:
Files of the Long Beach Island Historical Association.

“Historic Structures of the Borough of Beach Haven," a pamphlet published
by the Beach Haven Bicentennial Commission. 1976.

WJalking tour of Victorian Houses South of Centre Street in Beach Haven."
Presented by the Long Beach Island Historical Association.

RECORDED BY: M. May DATE: QOctober 1980
ORGANIZATION: Heritage Studies
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SEW SPRSEY OFFICE OF CULTURAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

HISTORIC PRESERVATION SECTION
INDIVIDUAL STRUCTURE SURVEY FORM

HISTORIC SITES INVENTORY No. 1503-31

THSTORIC NAME.  Dr,

TOCATION: 506 S. Atlantic Avenue
SMUNICIPALITY Seach Haven
USGS oUAD:

Dante Mattioni
Sujte 200, 330 Market E.
Philadelphia, Pa. 19106

OWNER/ADDRLESS:

Edward H. Williams House

COMMON NAME:
BLOCK/LOT

COUNTY: Ocean
UTM REFERENCES:
Zone/Northing/Easting

" balustrade and banister with elbows.

DESCRIPTION

Construction Date: ¢. 1890
\ramtect: ~oss. Wilson Bros. & Co. Phila.
stvler Queen Anne

Number ot Stones: 2%
Founaation. Tow, brick cemented over
Extenior Wall Fabrict asbestos siding
[Fenestration: 3 bay
Root/Chimneys:

Additional Archiutectural Description:

hip with gables, full returns

Source of Date: style
Builder:
Form/Plan Type: L-shape with tower

An open porch is located on three sides and contains flared square posts, turned

corner,

o
£

flocor has recessed tower windows with shaped boards at their tops.

The porch is partially enclosed on the northeast
“anelled shutters and pedimented peaks are found on many multi-paned windows.
" The second

Similar

boards with end brackets are found on the third floor openings which also have gabled

roofs.

A balcony with turned balustrade is also found on the third floor.
ular windcw 15 located at the peak of the east end.

A triang-
Other unusual windows including

a small triangular dormer and an eyelid dormer are also found on the roof.

Map (Indicate North)
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8. " Significance

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
___ prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric ___ community planning ___ landscape architecture____ religlon

_ 1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic ____conservation —_law ___ sclence

~_ 1500-1599 ___ agriculture —__ economics —literature ____sculpture
___1600-1699 _X_ architecture ___ education — military —_ soclal/
___1700-1799 ___ art ___engineering ___ muslc humanitarlan
_X_1800-1899 ____ commerce ___exploration/settlement ___ philosophy — theater
___ 1900~ ____ communications — Industry ____politics/government ___ transportation
___invention ___ other (specify)

Specific dates Builder/Architect

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

SIGNIFICANCE

The Beach Haven Multiple Resource Area, based on a comprehensive survey
of the Borough of Beach Haven, New Jersey, contains elements which demonstrate the
development, over a relatively short time period in the late 19th century, of a
beach-front resort intended to attract weathly summer residents from New York and
philadelphia. Although some of the major structures have been lost and the beach-
front now contains modern motels, a large portion of the town retains its
Centennial-era appearance, both in individual structures and urban form,

Historically and/or architecturally significant elements within the Area
include: The Beach Haven Historic District, within which most of the nominated
structures are located; two individual houses physically separated the District by
a modern church on a city block-size lot and an 1874 farmhouse, physically
separated from the district. ' Together these elements exhibit the most intact
resources in a beachfront resort which developed very rapidly about 1880.

Unlike some other Victorian shore area towns, Beach Haven was not founded
with any religious overtones; thus, no land was originally set aside for public
purposes. What open space exists today is either the site of a vanished building or
is a private lawn. Since the town was founded as a speculative real estate
development, its -urban form consists primarily of broad streets, in a grid plan,
lined with large houses on lots., The large estate or ocean front compound, such as
exists in New England shore resorts, was not built here.

Additional significance arises from the fact that several of the buildings
are known (and others suspected) to have been designed by a Philadelphia architec-
tural firm Wilson Bros. and Company which had close ties to the Pennsylvania
Railroad and the Baldwin Locomotive Works; partners in the latter company were
instrumental in the founding of Beach Haven. The same architectural firm is known
to have designed a bath house and railroad station in Cape May, New Jersey,
approximately 60 miles south.

Beach Haven and its surrounding area were first settled at the turn of the
17th century. Whalers were probably the first settlers to come to Long Beach
Island and, by 1823, twelve whaling families are known to have lived along the
shores of the Island. Some of the early whaling families began taking in summer
boarders interested in fishing, hunting and relaxing on the Island. In 1815
Joseph Horner took in guests at his home south of Beach Haven.

U.5. GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE : 1981 O - 330-456
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Jeven vears later Horner sclC 513 business to Fhiladelpnla Tuests

- ns roﬂrui‘:}T f'lO\_l\v, J:l" ese men
rormed the thiladelrnila Corba
gggoaﬂlca Hornez's home and “yrned 1t iato a first class seaside

notel- Z2v the mid 19th centuly other structures used as boardi
inz rouses and sunning clubs had teen bullt along the shores. ol
the bLan*, however these buildings were small, 1solateg settle-
mentsS separated by miles of aanu and dune ve“etatlon o planned
town, roads, or cr anized uransoorcatlon system to the Islana
existed.s

X
In the soring of 1874, Archelaus f£. Fharo cof nearby Tuckerton,
lew Jersey founded Beach Haven. Named bv his daughter, lirs.
Samuel ishhurssc, Beach Haven was laver recoumended by the Ameri-
can liedical issociation as "one of tho best uhfcs resorts 1n the
easvern United States for hay fever surierers” Pharo, a long
time visitor to Lon: Beach Isiand, first :nv151onea a ssaslde
Town in ths early 1870s for this purpose. Along with partners
of Burnham, Parry, Williams and Company (later the Baldwin
Locomotive Works, of Philadelphia), rharo formed the Tuckerton
and Lons Seach Bullding Association. “Yhree structures were tullt
by Zharc in 1374: <two houses (on second Strest);, oge for the
Fharo Laully (at l/l,, and one for Dr. Albert Smith of Phila-
delzhia #1257, who 12d been a frequent visitor to the Long :
Zeacn zZouss, & hetel located a few milies soutnh of the town. The
nird structure bullt by Praro was the rarry Hcouse, the first of =)
a number oI luxury hotels at Beach Haven, named after Charles o
Parry of tne Baldwin Locomotive Works. The hotel, which could
hcuse 25C Juests, stced at The present site of the hynett Fethodist
Churca at Seacn and Centre streetvs.” A dock on the bay front and
a road leading tc 1t (now known as Cld Dock Road), were also
built at this time. =mariy maps of the town shcw Titat Dock Road
and cther streets have reﬁained unchanged.

c‘f‘
®)

A map ol lZ7o outllnes the early transvortation system of the

town. The Lhiladelphia or New York visitor to 3each Haven could
travel by railroad to Tuckerton where a railrcad spur leading to
t':e bay nad been constructed. At the bay the visitors boarded
steamers wnich carried them to the end of Dock Road at Beach

Haven. A. R. Pharo was influential in the construction of the
railroad spur to the bay in 1872 and Baldwin Locomotives were

used by tne Tuckerton Railroad, which ry account for or demonstrate
the comrany's interest in the development of Beach Haven. This
early Transportation system was alsc used to haul food and build-

ing materials.h

The succ.ss of the Perry Hcuse promcted the development of new
notels at Beach Haven. Robert B. Zngle, operator of the Parry
House, purchased a lot in 1&76 to built a larre hotel along South
Street, now fnglesidc Avenue. The "Engleside", designed by
Addlson Zutton, a Fhiladelpnia architect, could accomodate up to
3CC :suests and had its own zardens, cows and chickens. The

Hotel stocod at the present site of the town green until 1t was
depolishea in 1945, 5 many famocus and wealthy zeople of the day
visited The hotel as seen 1n the Inzleside advertisements which

1isTec 1t3 important guests.©
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The Zaldwin Hotel, circa 185, was bullt to replace the Parry
douse wnich had be-n destroyved b. fire in the early 1:=80's.

The Zaldawin, itself destroyed by fire in the 1960s, stood on
Pearl .treet at the present site of the new Holy innocents
ifiission Church. +he hotel could accoumodate 400 guests and was
equipped with elcctric lichts? hydraulic elevators and not ana
cold ruuning sea water.’/ omaller hotels and boarding houses
were cons.ructed during th.s time, 1ncluding the ilarnolia House
(215 Centre Street), and the Ocean House (now destroyed), both
built in 1877.

The larze hotels found it neccessary to establish bath houses,
tennls courts and transvortation to and from Dock zoad to satisfy
their well-to-do zuests. In 1lg84 the Baldwin was connected to
the steamboat landing by a raillroad wihich ran along Deach ivenue
from Pearl to Third Strest. ihen started, the railroad used a
small steam locomotive bullt by the Baldwin Locomotive Woris.
The inzgiesice also estavlished transportation for arriving

and departing guests. B

Beach Avenue, whlch contalned the Beach Haven Raillroad line, was
the only north-south street in town until the 20th century. The
avenue soon tecame the commercial center of townd ans was linszd
with a zrocery store (#205), a butcher srop (northwest corner

of Beach and Amber), a barber shop (#110), post office (#8) and
a departuent store (2.0 Centre), all of wnich still stand, al-
though now mostly used as residential structures. Other shops
were Zound wlthin the Znzleside complex and at strest corners
along Beacih Avenue. Not until the construction of Eay Avenue

in 1614 did Beach Avenue's role as a commercial center begin to
decline.

In 1386 the railrcad from lianahawkin (To the north), was completed
causing the demise of steamboat service. <YLhe railrcad further
promoted the development of the town, and a number oi structures

had already been built 1n anticlpation of the new transportation
link.

In the early 1880s a number of public structures and homes for
wealthy Philadelphians were designed by Wilson Brothers and
Comrany. <The company was a newly incorvorated engineering and
arcnitectural firm located in Philadelvhia, whose ovriancival
partners were John A. Wilson, Joseon M. Wilson and F.G. Thorn.
The Ifirm was known mally for its work in railroad engineering.
Thorn, tralned as an architect, studied under John lcArthur Jr.,
in rhiladelphia (architect of its City Hall), and was responsible
for many of the firm's designs. John A. Wilson, englneer, was
the principal engineer for the liain Mechanical Building of the
Cenvennial wWorlid's Fair in 1876. Orsanlaced in 1872, the firm
workea on projects .uch as the Philadelphia subway, the Fhila-
delpnlz eadiny Terminzal, tae 3Broad otreet station of The fenn-
sylvania Ra_irocad,' and nosvltals, newspaper bulldinegs, scheols,
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o]
notels, and private nomes throu hout The east.’ delr interest
in Beacn Havern coincidec with thelr assoclation with the Baildwin
Locomotive vor..s, the larzest locomotive bullders in the country.
The comvany's wain headcuarters 1n Philadelphia was designed
by Wilson bBrothers and Company. +he Baildwiln dotel was also
constructed by the architectural firm along with residential
structures on Coral Street built for many orpganizers of the town.

The 1.0 rlock of Coral contains three homes which were designed
bv the firm for Charles rFarry (£127), George 3urnham (#1%2),
an~ =Zdward 5. Williams (#123§ Cther nhomes on the block, built
for well-to-do Philasdelphians, sucn as the Drinkers (#112), may
also :ave been constructed bv the rirm. These large cottages
are tyvical summer hcmes oI thelr era containing elements such
as comclnation gable, gambrel or niv roofs, elaporate porches
and window surrounds, towers and cther decorative elenents in
various sutvlies. »11 or these elements are uniquely and artis-
Tically arrangsc exempliliring The com any's high standing in
the arcnitectural field. P

One of the most 1lmgpressilve structures desizned by the firm at
Jeac:. faven is the moly Innocents iilssilon Church, now the Long
Seachh Historical Association. The cnurcn, circa 1.81, was the
first hcuse of worship on the Island. This Stick/Shingle style
structure has unusual elements sucn 2s ralllngs, crackets and
Wwinaow Tracery which empl v trefoil arches. 1In the construction
of the building the firm agaln shows its originality and ex-
pertlise in the architectural profession. Like other important
buildings in Beach faven, the church was also associated with
the saldwin Locomctive Works. Iirs. Charles Farry, wife of the
comrany's presixdent, donated mnonev for The construction oflthe
churcn 1n umemory of ner daughter, lirs. Clara rFarry Hilger. “

Froperties, both individual structures and historic districts,
were selected for nomination for their ability to 1llustrate
the Borough oI Beacnh Haven at 1ts peal as a Victorian resocrt.
The Sherbourne Farmhouse, although buillt the same year the town
was founded, was an isolated structure, unrelated to the large-
scale development taking place to the north (at what-is now the

center of town). The Beach Haven and Dock Road Historic Distriects

togetner with the hcuses at SC4 and 506 5. Atlantic Avenue (now
sepalated Irom the Beach haven Digtrict by a modern church com-
plex), convey the two forces cf the resort: +the summer homes

of tne wealthy urbanites, ani the less lmpressive but no less
important structures at the bay. Then, as now, there was a need
for fisnermen's cottages, docks, bars, and small hotels to com-
plement the activitles 1n the center of town. 3Jince Dock Road
was the main thoroughfare east from the steamboat wharf, this
was a natural location for this sroupilng, recoznized 1n this
nomination as the Dock Road Historic District.

To 4 -.i'eav exTent .Lhe sTructures in the nominated Beach liaven
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Historic District sveak for themselves and reveal a zreat deal
abpcut She degvelcpment of tThe ftown. =Zven a casual terusal snows
tnat a). “eveicpment took place over a relatively short time
svan; ©0jy. the bulldings were coastructed for people of means;
C,. &t lecst one ﬂlﬁnl] skilled designer was at work; and 3).
oy inference, major beachfreht bulldings are no longer standing

distorical research documents and zmvlifies These assumptions.
The involvement of the Baldwin Locomntlve vWorks and ol tae
arcaitectural firm of ‘Wilson 3rothers and Compeny, discussed
elsewnere, adds nore historical 1lmportance to the architecturzl
significance witleh 1s self-evident.

Taken Together, the districts and individual structures inclucle
in thls nomlnation attempt to present a more valanced rendition
of the Victorian resort town. Seac: zaven was not comvosed only
of a3 rfew grand hotels 1n a sea oI large Queeen .Anne summer
houses, although thet element was certalnly 1lmportant. LTt zlso
inciludeda a system for mOVlnb visitors to and from the mainland,
represented oy Pock Road-\the railrcad station, wiich would also
th 1n thils category, 1is still standing and is used as a re-
idence¥ (For reasons of integrity it was not inciudzd in this
A;ﬂ_NQVLUAJ, & system ci sTreets betueen and amnong t e buildings;
and less hicgh-style structures whienh are appurtenant to any
concentraticn of more well-to-do veovrle. Among others, these
include the drildings and structures of fishermen, who, 1T is
assumed. trovided Tcod for the residents and zuests 1n the

Fal

eastern rart o the town.

Beach iaven has been fortunate in retaining its identity amid
the post-war construction boom that has drastically changed
otner verts of the Jersey shore. 1its Victorian heritage, nearly
intact, 1s palvably present in the block of unified St“ﬁatscanes
within the 3eacn Haven Historic District, and :che sense of the
town's nistory 1s Xxept alive by the Long Beach Island Histori-
cal Association, which has as 1ts headguarters the outstanding
Sformer Holy Innccents Church. No building better represents

the community's beginnings, making this new use a fitting one.
The Associlation maintains files, publishes brochures, and con-
ducts walking tours, among 1ts many activities aimed at pre-
serving the zrea's vast.

In short, Z=ac: faven has realized (or perhaps never Forgot)
what 1t 1s an<¢ wnat 1t has, and by means of the multiole re-~
source format, reccgnition can be given to the varlety of Tre-
sources representing the various elements of the years lmmedia-

tely fcllowlng its founding,
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Yootnoteas

sh. The Lure of Long Beach, (Longz 3each
each 3card of Trade, 1lYs6), p.42

a3

"Uistory of Holy Innocents' Farish from 1882 to 1974",
published by the Holy Innocentvs Parish, 1974, n».4.

In the Beginning', The Beach Haven Times, 29 iugust 19¢3.

CRayard sandolph kraft. Under Barnegat's Seam, (lew York:
1660), ve.

!

7 !lHiStory of EOly Innocents',” De

I

.
-

Bimal ¥ing (article), The Beach Haven Tinmes, July 1976. ’

RN

>"TLady with a Lens," The Bzsach Haven Times, 15 October
1975,

10"History of Holy Innocents®,",
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The Seacn ifaven iistoric vistrict is the lariest ccmponent

of the seach Haven lHultinle Resourc€ Area. 1t contains the
majortity of the nominated buildings and is anonz the most
hizhly intact concentrations pf late 19th century resort
arcnitceture surviving on the ilew Jersey coast. In contrast

to many other resort towns in the state, Beach Haven was

built to serve the uvper middle clilasses orf New York and Phil-
adelrhia, a role which 1t fulrilled until recent years. ASs a
result, nost of the buildings constructed--both private homes
and larze hotels-- were generous (if not o- ‘ulent) examcles of
the prevalrlng styles of the era, primarily employlng Queen
Anne elzments. Althoush fire, storms, and repiacement have
teken their toll (especially along the now motel-lined beach
front, not included in the nominated district), what remains

is a remarxable array of resort architecture evoking the sense
of the town much as 1t was in 1ts nevaay 1in the last quarter
of the 1%th century. ror a fuller statement of the district's
historical and archltnctural significance, refer to_the attacned
Statement of ©~ignificance for the Multirls =esource Area as a
whole, which discusses fouanding, develonment, major structures,
and prominent individuals.

Aside frowm the major buildings in the district, there are also
a anuabac of no less inportant structures which do not aprear

to nave Deen the work of an architect. Ulowt of these buildings
were vrobably designed and bullt bv local craftsmen. Many of
these homes are larsge vernacular structures such as the clao—
board houses of Pharo and Smith on Second Street. Later build-
ings of this slze were sheathed 1in shingle and enplcyed Queen
Anne elements simillar to tiose found 1n the zrand cottages on
Coral Strect.

Likxe many beach resorts, less expensive lots were available a
few blocxs from the ocean front and were often bought by middle
class families. In Beach Haven the midcle class oullt their
homes on small lots west of Beach Avenue. oSimilar to the
larger homes, these structures were bullt by local craftsmen
and sone of thelr details are found in the more elaborate
structures in the district. In these buitdings, Queen Anne,
and Victorilian Gethic elements are co-:mon.

The district benefits from its period of primary construction,
one in which irregularity of form was common. However, this
diversity of parts combines to create a whole which is unified
by style “hile only a few buildings can be called similar in
Lesizn, most snare one or several oY the elements common to
residential architecture at the end of the last century; ir-
resular massing, a v-riety of roof types, dormers, (ueen “nne
sash, Towers, ana‘*he ublcuitous porch, usually with turned
elenents 1:. the bqluSErade, vosts, or valence band, and orten
vith ornate sawn brackets. Porches were inrurtant to the late
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19th century exurban home, and even more so in the se. side

resorts wnerée the functicn offinhaling the sea breezes was

2ddz2d to that of sitting and rockinz. <Thus, nearly every

structure in the district has an exvansive porch, more akin

to a veranda than to the urban stoop, adding to the irregularity

of The massing; porches seen tc becorne a necessary part ol the

public face of a2 buildiny, regardless of the structure's func-

tion, in the same sense that all buildings must also have a

main entrance; thus, even th: Holy Innccents PHission Church

(now the Lonz Beach Island Historical 4ssociation) has an or-

nate norcn, although one does not ncrmaily envision rocXing

on the front porcn, of a religlous building.

In a way, the Beach Haven Historic District represents the most

hichly visible elements cof the Pultivle sdesource Arcea, and yet

it presents only Tart or the ticture. Its cohesive, unified

streetscaves, convalnin:s not only larze houses but also churches,

re2vall uses, smaliler houses, and hotels are reminiscent of the
aven of a century ago. Intrusions and severely altered

buiildings are Tfew, wlth The result that the blocks of large

' th century houses continue to make a stronz statement

he District's early years.

Cbviously no town consists entirely cf .rand nouses on large
lots: for a discussion of other bulldings in Seacnh zaven see
the Statement of Yignirlcance ror the Multlple :esource area,

as welli as the Lock #oada Zilstorlic District contained herein.
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he Docik itoasd area came intc oelng as such shortly after the
founding oI Seach Haven in 1874. 4As has been noted elsewhere
in this nomnination, when Beach Haven was founded in that year
a steamboat wharf was built to serve arriving and devparting
rassengers, connected to The major residential area by Dock
Road which terminated at the wharf. <he small compunlity which
ex1sts here today exhibits primarily vernacular buildings, at
least cne of which (the Ho:uel De Crab) predates the founding

of the town. It was dbuilt in 1848 in Harvey Cedars (NJ) as the

first "house of refuge" for shivwreck victims, a predeccessor
of the more formally orzanized Lifesaving Service. Later in
the century it was moved to 1ts »resent locatlon oo sServ2 2s
a lodging for fishermen and travellers.

Other notels were constructed along the road, including the
Acme Zar and EHotel, which later became a famous night svot dus
to the vnatronage of such,public figures as Lou Gehrilg, Babe
Ruth and John Bar:iymore.” Unlike the fashionable Englieside
and Baldwin dctels, however, btars znd hotels in the Dock Road
area were Irecuented both by the elite seeking solitude, and
by the middle classes.

Small fishing sheds and docks were also located in the areay

many can still be found along Bock Road and West Aveune. The
Beach Haven Yacht Club was also located along the wharf in the
18&0s.

lPhe Summer Times, 20 July 1377.
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Seginrning at the 1lnter_.ectlon or the eastern curbline or Atlantic
Avenue with the northern curbline oi vecond Street, the boundzry
proceseds .enerally southward 2aionz salid eastern curbline of At-
lantic Avenue to the inversection with the extension 1n an east-
erly direction of the scuthern proverty line or 204 Atlantic
Avenue; thence zenerally westward along sald extension and pro-
perty line to the intersection with the eastern property line
of 111 Coral otreet; thence generally southward to the inter-
section with the northern curbline oi Coral street; thence
gczneralliy eastward along sald curbline to the intersecvion with
The extension in a nortrherly direction of the east boundary line
of 112 Coral otreet, and 1ts exTension in a southerly direction,
to 1Us intersection with the south curbline orf Pearl Street;
thence running westward along salcd curbline, cressing Beach
Avenue, 1Us intersection witan the extension in a soubuerly @i-
rection of the western property line of 207 FPearl; thence
northward alcng sald extension and wroperty lins td’the corner
of that property; thence east alonz its north property line
and 1ts extension 1n an easterly direction, to its intersection
with The western curbline oI EBeach Avenue; thence northward
alons sald curbline to the scuthwest corner of Coral to its
intersection with an extension in a southerly direction of the
west toundery line of 201 Coral Street; thence north along that
extension and property l.ne to the rear (north) lot line of
201 Corzsl; thence running eastwaerd zlong said rear lot line
to the west curbline of Seach Avenue; thence north along that
curbline to 1ts intersection with ths south curbline of Amber
Street; thence westward alonz sald southern curbline to 1its
intersection with an extension 1in a scutherly direction of the
western troverty line of 219 Amber Street; thence proceeding
Crenerally nerth alonz that extenslon and proverty line to the
rear (north) property line of 219 Amber Street; thence west
along an extension in a westerly direction of that line to the
southwest corner of the property at 226 kngleside Avenue;
thence north along the western line of said property and its
extension in a nertherly direction to tis intersection with
the northern curbline of Engleside Avenue; thence east to the
interseation with the western curbline .of Beach; thence conutin-
uln.; alonsg sala west curonline to the 1ntersection with an ex-
tension in an easterly direction orf the southern property line
of 8 Beach Avenue; thence west alons sald extension and proverty
line to the west lot line of 2C0 Centrej; thence north along
that line and its extension in a northerly direction to the
soutns curbline of Centre Street; thence genreally we:=t to the
interssctios with an extension in a southerly directicn of the
west proverty bcocundury ol 215 Centrey; thence northward along
that extension and »ropecrtv line to the rear (north) lot line
of 215 Centre; thence eastward along the rear (north) vroverty
lines c¢i the rrooertng on the north side oi Centre ostrset,
incorporating any 1rregularities therein, and an extension
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in an easterlv direction t¢ tTne 1ntersection wilith the western
curbline or Beach Avenu-j; thence northward .o the southern

curbiine of Second Strest; thence westward along that curbline
to the intersection with an ey*eﬁ51on 1n a Southerlv direction
oI the westvern property line “0f 219 Second Street; thence norch

glong that sxtensicn znd proverty line o thne inte:section with
the rear (north) lot line of sald proverty; thence east along
said north rooertj line, and those oI the properties on the
north side of sSecona Stree , lncorporating anv irregularities
therein to the southwest corner of the property at 210 Beach
Avenue; thence along the wesTern line o: said property, ad
o 1ts extension north, %o The northern curpline of Third Street;
thence east to Lhe exvension 1n a nertnerly direction of the
western boundary cif 12& Zhird Street; thence south along thav
exvension of the property line to the rear (south) lot of said
preoerty; thenceeastward zlonz sald corepertv and the rear
(north) orocerty lines of the properties rron.ing on Second
Street, incorporetinz any irrezularities therein, to the north-
east corner of the property at i2l Seconda Streests “thence south
along The eastern vouaczry ¢ 121 Zecond 2trest to the intersec-
tion of ©the morthern curbline of Second Strest; thence east
along ssild northern curbline to ~he point of beginning.

“Uv
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Boundaries of the Beach Zaven Historic DUistrict were selected
to encomnva..s, to The greatest.extent vermltted by the area's
intecgrilty, the historically and architecturally significant
bulldings datin. from Lhe area's perioa of ilmvortanczs. 4
pedestrian, building-by-building survey revealed this to be an
area of avproximately seven clty blocks. Cn the east, the
atlentic Ccean, an obvious boundary was :zej-cted due To recent
notel/motel constructicn east of atlantic sAvenue.

‘he northern boundary was chosen silince recent structures fornm
the wajority cf buildings north oI Second ostreet, although
adjacent 19th century and early 20th century structures and
those of historic or architectural lmtvortanse along Seach and
Third street have been included.

iV

e extension of the western boundary to include the later turn
of the century commercizsl structures along Bay Avehue was con-
sidered but rejected since major alterations have been made to
these structures and larze numbers of intrusions nhave been
built opetween this area and the district. wikewlse intrusions
and buiidings with mnajor alteraticns are found in otner vlaces
alonz the western boundary, causing only parts of some streets
To pe 1ncluded in the district.

e exvension of the southern boundary to include four structures
simlilar to those found in the district w' s considered, but re-
jected due toc the comstructicn of a modern block-scguare church

and parish house on ths blcck bordered by Fearl, Atlantic, Harine,
and Seach Avenue., Two of these buildinzs, 504 and 5C5 S. Atl.ontic,
comprise another element of this nomination. Other 20th century
intrusions bar the extensi.n of the boundary south along Beach

and along the south side of the 200 block of Pearl.
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seginning at the intersection of the western curbline of Vest
Avenue witia the soutnern curbdline or Dock foad, the oboundary
croceeds jsenerally eastward aleng sald southern curbline of
Doc.a Zoad to the intersection with the eastern curbline of
Tennsvivania Avenue; thence generally northward along said
east curbline To the intersection of the north curbline of
second Street; thence zenerally westward along said north
curbline vo 1ts inter:iection with the bulkhead line at Little
Zzg Zerbor:; thence zeneral:y southward along the buikhead
lin: to the intersection wltia the north curbline of Centre
Street; thence generally eastward along sald curbline To
inversection witn the ezst curblines of "est Avenue;
thence north alons said eastern curdline to the poini of be-
_ in




2. DOCK ROAD HISTORIC DISTRICT Page

} #10 BOULNDARY JUSTIFICATION

District boundaries were chosen to include the greatest pro-
vortion of late 19th and early 20th century structures and the
smallest number of later buil@ings, sufficlent to represent
the sense of the district at the end of the last century.

Due to natural features of the area, znd to new construction,
this 1s only a handful of structures.

Wetlands surrounded the road orior to the 20th century and a
canal ran along the south side of the road, causinsg only a
narrow strip adjacent to the road to be developed. Todey a
larze enmpty lot, a 20th century apartment house, and a diner
are round south of Dock Road. Only the structures along the
north side of the road, whicn date rfrom the late 19th and
early 20th centuries are inciuded 1n the districv.

In zeneral, the area surrounding the district contains undeve-
loped land and housing and co:mercial structures built in the
20th century. On the east, new houses bar the extension of
the boundary east or FPennsylvania Avenue.

Cn the north, the boundary i1s barred by a modern dock and
marina. Thils boundary therefore ends at the northern curbline
- of Geccnd Street.

J

The western boundary of the district 1s the Little Egg Harbor
shoreline. Althouzh no siznificant structures stand in the
northeast corner oi the district, the boundary was extended
west To include the wharf alcng the bay, slnce it was the
slte ol tThe steamboat landlng estvablished in 1874. 1In the
southwest corner of The dlSuTlC ., the boundary was extended
to include late 19th and early 2Cth century f _shing docks

and sheds south of Dock Hoad. Further extension of this
boundary was considered, btut rejected due to more recent de-
velopuent south of the rresent boundary line.
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10. Gecographical Pata

Acreage of nominated property B.H.H.D: 23 Acres/DAR.H.D: 4 Acres/504-506 S. Atlantic: Less than 1 ac
Sherbourne Farm Less than 1 Quadrangle scaie

Quadrangle name
UMT References See topographical map.
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Verbal boundary description and justification

See attached continuation sheet. .

List all states and counties for properties overiapping state or county boundaries

state New Jersey code county Ocean code

\rstate code county code
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name/title Michael May - Architectural Historian
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The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:
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